UNITED NATIONS - ' He

GENERAL - =
. /AC.L8/SR,20
GE N E R A L 28 Decen/xber 1951
ASSEMBLY (RIGTHAL: ENGLISH D
. FREN®H

Dual Distribution

- COMMITTEX ON INTERNATIONAL CRIMINaL JUR ‘TCTION
First Session

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE TWENTIETH MELTING

~

. held at the Palais des Hations, Geneva,
on Wednzsday 22 august 1951, at 9 a.m.

CONTENTS:

Procedure of an international criminal court:

Chapter III of annex II to the Secretary-General's
memorandum {continued)



A/AG.48/8R,20

rRge 2
Present :
Chalrman: Mr, MORRIS
Members:
Australia Mr. WYNHES
Brazil | Mr, AMADO
China _ , ; Mr, WANG
Cuba : _ Me, VALDES ROIG
Denmark Mr. SORENSEN
Egypt MOSTAFA Bey
France . " - My, PINTO
Iran My, KHOSROVANI
Israel ‘ Mr, COHN
Netherlands Mr, ROLING
Pakistan Mr, MUNIR
Syria Mr, TARAZxX
United Kingdom of Great Britain -
and Northern Ireland Mr, TURNER
United States of america Mr., MaKTOS
Uruguay _ Mr, PINEYRO CHaIN
Secretariat:

Mr, Liang Secretary to the Committee



A/AC 48/SR .20
page 3

PROCEDURE OF AN INTERNATIONAL CRIMINAL COURT

Chapter III of annex II to the Secretary-General’s memorandum (continued)
“(A/AC.48/1, A/AC.48/L.9, A/AC.48/L,10, A/AC.L8/L.13)

“Article A/AC L8 d 4/xC,L8/L

1, The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to consider article 41 as drafted
by the Secretariat in document A/AC.48/1, and by the United States delegation in.
document A/iC.48/L.9. He beliecved that in both versions the requirement of &

ms jority vote meant a majority vote of Judgeé present and woting. ‘The wain
difference between the two texts was that, whereas the Secretariat's draft
provided for the dismissal of the case in the event of a tied vote, the United
States draft provided that the vote of the presiding judge should be decisive,

2, Mr, ROLING (Netherlands) considered the provision in question to be &
matter of detail that should be dealt with in the court's rules of procedure,
particularly as the_éommlttee had decided as far as possible to confine the
rrocedural provisions of the statute to the formulation of minimum guarantees,

3. Mr. PINTO (France) sald that his delegation was generally in favour of
a minimum of detail in the statute, It did, however, consider it necessary to
make an exprese stipulation to the effect that thc decisions of the court should
be by a majority. In the absence of such a provision, the court would find
itself in a difficult position and might interpret the silence of the statute on

‘the subject as an indication that decisions must be unarimous,

b Mr. WYNES (iustralia) agreed that there should not be too many detailed
"pules in the statute, but wondered whether the Netherlands representative had
considered the fact that a rule similar to that at present under consideration
was included in the Statute of the Internationsl Court of Justice.

54 Mr. ROLING (Netherlands) said that he had no strong feelings in the
matter; his only aim was to ensure that the statute should not become
unbalanced through the inclusion of too many purely procedural provisions.

+



A/AC.L48/SR,20
page 4

6, The CHaIRMAN gathered that the majority was in favour of retaining the

provision concerning decisions by majority vote,

7. Mr. MsKTOS (United States of nmerica) considered that once a quorum had
been established, it would be sufficient to have judgments pronounced by majority
vote, The United States text followed article 4(c) of the Nuremberg Charter and
article 55 of the Statute of the International Court of Justice, '

8, Mr. WalNG (China) said that he prererred the Secretariat's text, since a
decision by a majority of judges present might easily represent the view of a
minority of the judges of the court.

9, Mr. SORENSEN (Denmark) said that he had interpreted the Secret.~"at!s
text somewhat differently to the Chinese representative. He (Mr. Sbrensen)
believed that when it was said that the decisions of the court should be by a
majority of the judges, the intention was that such decisions should be by a
majority of judges participating in the judgment. In his view, that principle
should be sustained. So far as the United States text was concerred, he thought
that it wouid be preferable to replace the word "present', in the third line, by
the phrase "participating in the judgment®,

10, ‘Mr. WaNG (China) observed that, while both texts would make it possible
for a decision to be taken by a minority of the entire court, under the United
States proposal that. minority could be smaller than would be the case under the
Secretariat's draft.,

11, The CHAIRMAN said that the United States suggestion requiring a majority
of Jjudges present had heen actuated partly by the fzet that the United States
delegation envisaged decisions by a chamber (Division) of the court as well as

by the full court.

12, Mr, LIaNG, Secretary to the Committee, explained that the Secretariat
had wished to distinguish between crimin~l and civil cases, and to afford fuller

protection to the accused than was necessary for a civil defendant. The



' »/AC.48/5R.20
page 5

-~

Secretariat!s idea was that the decisions of the court should be taken by a
majority of the judges sitting as a Bench on a given case, and the difference
between the Secretariat and the United States drafts was the difference between
e majority of judges participating in the trial and a majority of Judges preaent

and voting, that was to say, not abstaining.

13. Mr, WYNES (Aiustralia) considered that on practical grounds it ﬁéuld be
necessary to require that decisions should be taken by a majority of the judges
sitting on a particular case, °

14, The CHAIRMaN su@gested that the Committee should take a decision as to
whether the measure should be the total number of judges of the court, whether or
not they had heard the case 1in question, or the majority of the judges sitting.

15, Mr, PINEYRO CHaIN (Uruguay) noted that there were two distinct questions
involved. The first was whether decisions should be taken by a plenary sitting
of the court, or by a chamber of the court. On that point he approved the
suggestion made by the United States delegation to the effect that the court
might divide up into chambers,

16. The second question was whether, once the number of judges sitting had been
fixed, decisions should be taken by a majority of the judges present, or by a
majority of the judges appointed. In his opinion, the majority should be defined
on the basis of the quorum of*the chamber as fixed by the court. If the majority
were based on the number of judges present, judges would be able to facilitate
the constitution of a majority by voluntarily absenting themselves, and the
determination of the majority would as a result, be to a certain extent governed _

by an arbitrary factor,

17, In view of the fact that there would probably be no appeal againet decisions
of the court, it would be desirable to provide the greaﬁest possible guarantee of
just decisions by including in the total, on the basis of which the majority had
to be determined, any Jjudges who might be absent,



A/AC.48/SR,20
page 6

’

18, Mr., “MAKTOS (United States of America) submitted that the variable
majority of which the Uruguayan representative had spoken would be possible under
both drafts. The important consideration, howsver, was the establishment of a
proper working basis that would take into account the absence of judges for one
reason or another, He felt that judges could Be relied upon to be conscientious

in attendance whenever possible,

19, Mr, PINSYRO CHAIN (Uruguay), developing his previous observations, said
that it would be for the court to determine for each trial how many judges' should
sit, the majority required for a decision then being calculated on the basis of
that number, Under U?uguayan law, all meubers of the Bench must always be present,
Such a rule was of great importance for intermational criminal jurisdiction, sincs,
assuming the number of judges to be fifteen and the majority to be based on the
number of judges present, whatever that might be, a decision might be taken in the
absence of any rule to the contrary, by a very small majority indeed, if only two
or three judges were present. It was essential, therefore, to stipulate that no
decision could be taken in the voluntary absence of a Judge, or with a judge or -
Judges abstaining. Evéry Judge present at a trial must vote, otherwise his
abstentioq‘Would entell a reduction in the number of votes requirsed to constitute

a majority.

20. In his opinion, the cougt hight git if a majority of the judges appointed was
present, but its decisions could be taken only by a majority of the total number
of judges appointed. If, for instance, seven judges were appointed to the court,
proceedings could continue so long as four of them were present, but no decision

would be valid unless there were four votes for or against.

2l. He would fﬁrther suggest that it be stipulated that the death penalty should
be pronounced not by a bare majority, but only by a specisl majority, or even by

'

unanimous vote,

2, The CHAIRMAN suggested that he should put to the Committee which of the
following criteria it wished to adopt: first, the majority of all the members of
the court; second, the majority of all members participating in a trial, whether
or not tHey eventually voted; third, the majority of all members of the court
voting one way or the other or abstaining, I ' '



~

A/AC 48/ .20

page 7
! .
It was so agreed,
23, | The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the criterion of a decision by a majority

of all members of the court,

?he Committee unanimously decided against such a_criterion.

2. The CHAIRMAN then put to the Committee the criterion of a decision by
a majority of all mémbers of the court perticipating in the trial, whether or
not they eventually voted, d .

That criterion was accepted, 8 votes being cast in favour, and it was left-
to_the Drafting Sub-Committee to prepare an appropriate text,

25, The CHATRMAN said that the haxt point for consideration was whether,
in the event of an equality of votes, & case should be dismissed, or the vote
of the presiding judge should be decisive,

26, Mr, COHN (Israel) considered that distinctions should he made betwsen
the decisions of the court during the cours> of trial, its decisions as to guilt,
and its decisions as to the sentence,- The United States probosal that the vote
of the presiding judge should be decisive would in his view be appropriate in the
case of rulings by the court., The Secretariat's proposal that in the event of an .
equaiity of votes the case should be dismissed, was the rule that should apply
to decisions with regard to the guilt of the accused. Ae to decisions relating
to the sentence, whether death sentence or other, neither the rule that the case
should be dismissed nor the rule thét the vote of the presiding judge should be
declisive should apply; instead, in the absence of a majority on the sentence

to be pronounced the.}ightest sentence any member of the court wished to impose
should be passed._ |

27, Mr, ROLING (Netherlands) considered thet rulings by the court should
not be provided for in the statute, Nor cauld.he support the Israeli
representative's proposél with regard to dscisions as to the éentence, for
experience Had shown thot there would almost always be one judge who differed
widely from his colleagues on that question, and it would not be right for the



A/AC.LB/SR,20
page 8

court to be bound by the view of a dissenting judge. In his view, decisions as

to sentence should be on the bssis of a majority vote, and where it was a Auestion

_ of a deathrsentence, consideration could bs éiven to the advisability of requiring
8 two-thirds majority. |

28, The CHAIRMAN understood the Israsli representative to have suggested
that only when there was a wide divergence of views as to what sentence should
be imposed, thus making it impossible to obtain the rsquired msjority, should the
lightest sentence be pronounced,

29, Mr. ROLING (Netherlands) was of the opinion that, given time and
consultation among judges, it would always be possible tc obtain the required
majority, National courts were faced with the same problem which, in practice,
was solved without much difficulty,

30, Mr. WINES (Australia) asked the Israeli representative what solution he

. would propose in a cése where, of fifteen Judges on the Bench, eight had found

the ‘accused guilty, and three wished to impose a sentence of six ysars imprisonment,
one a sentence of five years, one a sentence of four years, and the remaining

three a sentence of one year,

31, Mr, COHN (Israel) repeated that his proposal was thet, if no majority
could be obtained, the minimum sentence should be imposed. He had never envisaged
the poasibility of a court with more than seven Jjudges; in fact, he belleved
that "equitable justice" would not be possible with a bench of fifteen judges,
Assuming, however, the case put forward by the Australian representative, he
considered that the accused should be glvsn the minimum sentence of one year'!s
imprisonment ,

32, The CHAIRMAN said that as there appeared to be no support for the Israeli
represaentative’s proposal, he would ask the Committee to decide between the
Secretariat and United States provisions governing cases of a tied vote,



., bage 9

33. Mr, WANG (China) believed that, in order to give effect in the
Secretarizt draft to the point made by the Netherlands r-presentstive, the word
"judgments" in the first sentence should be substituted for the word "decisions",

34, Mr, LIANG, Secretary to the Committee, said thet, as the Secrctariat
had not intended that "decisions" of the court should be intsrpreted &s including
the rulings of the court, he would agree to the amendment suggested by the
Chinese representative,

35, The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the principle in the second sentence of
articls 41 of annex II to the Secretary-General's memorandum (4/AC.48/1),

That -principle was adopted. 12 votes being cast in favour,

36. The CHAIKMAN said thet the next point for consideration was the
Uruguayan proposal, developed by the Netherlands representative, that, in the case
of a sentence of death, a vofé of two-thirds of all the participating judges
should be required.

37. Mr. ROLING (Netherlands) observed thut at the Tokyo Trisl a death
gentence passed by a majority of six to five had been most unfavourably recelved.

38, Mr. MAKTOS (United States of America) pointed out that on a Bench of
fifteen a simple majority would be eight and a two-thirds majority ten and
contended that insistence on a two~thirds majority vote would be tantamount to
abandoning certain democratic principles, the implication being that in the case
of a death sentence it was necessary to take special precautions against errors .

on the part of ths court,

39. Mr. SORENSEN (Denmerk) submitted that the issue would be whether a
death sentence or a sentence of life imprisonment should be imposed. There
would be no question of acquittal or non-acquittal, and it seemsd to be beside
the point to introduce considerations of democratic principles, The special

ma jority requirement was not unknown in many countries, wiih regard to decisions
by both Bench and jury.



A/AC48/5R 20
page 10

L3

-~

.AO. kr. PINTC .(France), supporting the United}statea rap;esentativa, said
that, since only a simple majority was requirad for the finding of guilt, he saw
no ground for stipulating a larger majority for the penalty. The most serious
decision was that whéreby an accused person was convicted, It was therefore
preferable thet the simple majofity already adopted should be made generally
applicable,

k1, 1t was, of coursz, regretiable that anyone could be sentenced to daath by a
ma jority of only one vote; but there was the possibility of a criminal sentenced
to death having his sentence commuted by the cleméncy proesdure,

L2, Mr. ROLING (Netherlands) admitted that at national level the system
of reprieve could be relied upons On the othsr hand, it had been found that

the authority set up at Nuremberg and Tokyo with pbwer to reduce sentences had
been unwilling to taﬁ% such action, largely because of the grave political
considerations involved. He did not theref&re think that at international level
the system of reprieve should be relied upon in the casc of death sentences,

43. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the proposal that in cases involving a
sentence of death, a two-thirds majority of the judges participating in the
trial should be required.

The proposal was adopted by 7 venaes to 3 with 4 abstentions, it being ieft
to the Drafting Sub-Committee to prep.re & suitable text, N

Article 42 (resumed from the 19th mesting) (A/AC,48/1 and A/AC.48/L.9)

Iy Mr. MAKTUS (United States of America) remindsd the Committee of the
explanation he had given at the 19th meetingl) of the expanded text proposed in
the United States amendment (A/AC.48/L.9)e

1) Summary record of the 19th mesting (a/hC.42/SR,19), paragraphs 77 and 78¢



A/iC 48 /SR 420
page 1L

.o ®

L5, Mr, COHN (Israel) supgested as a drafting amendment to the United States
proposal that the words "the facts constituting" should be inserted befores the
words "his participation' in paragraph 1.

L6, The CHAIRMAN thought thst that point could be left to the Drafiting

- Sub~Committee. ) -
L. Mr. LIANG, Secretary to the Committee, agreed that the Secretariat!s

text could well be amplified as proposed by the United States delzgation, althcuzh
so far as the guestion of the participation of the accused in the offence was
concerned; he considered thet an indication of that participation would already

be given in the statement of the grounds on which the accused had besn found
guilty.

48, Mr, TiRLiZI (Syria) proposed the insertion of the worde "and the
provisions under which he ie sentenced" between the word "guilty" and the words
"and his participation ,s..." in paragraph 1, of the United Statss text,

49 Such a provision concsrned was found in nctionul law; for codes of cri.dnal
procedure habitually stated taat Judgments should mention the provisions of the
law on which the& were based, a stipulation which was generslly observed by
neming the rclevant article of the penal ccde, failure.tq do go constituting a
groﬁnd for quashing the sentence,

+ 50, The CHAIKMAN observed that in giving his 6pinion a judge would almost .
~ inevitably make spécific mention of the lew on which the case was based,

51. Mr, PINTC (Frence) thought that it would be pointless to give the court
instructions of toc slementary a2 nature on how to state the rceasons for itas
Judgments, He preferred the text proposed by the United States delegation which
plosely resembled article 56 of the 3tatute of the Ianternational Court of Justiee,

52, The CHATRIN said that in the absence of support for the Syr{an
reprerentativets proposal, he would put paragraph 1 of %ie United States waxi
for article 42 to the vote,



 AJLC48/SR.20
. page 12

53, Mr, MUNIR (Pakistan) proposed the del:tion of the phrases "in which thex:

shall be set forth" and "and his participation in the offence of whieh he has been
convicted" so that paragraph 1 would read:

"Fhe judgment shall be accompaniad by an opinion in which there shall be
stated the reasons on which the judgment ie besed, and the grounds on
which each defendant is found guilty."

54, = Mr, MAKTOS (United States of America) believed it would bs desirable to
retain the clause to the effect that the extent of the participation of an ]
| aocused in the gffence of which he had been convicted should be set forth in the
opinion, He cbuld visuaslize the’poasibilf%y, in the absence of such a clauss, of
an opinion which did not clearly reveal how far a partioular accused had
participated in the crime,

The Pakistani proposal was adqpted by 7 votes to 1 with 5 abstentions.

55, The CHAIRMAN put paragraph 1, as amended to the vote.

The United States text for article 42, paragraph 1, as amnended, was adopted

by 11 vot:s to none with 3 abstentions,

Lo v ———————

56. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote paragraph 2 of the United States text.

Paragraph 2 6f article 42 was unarimousli adopted,

Article 42 A (A/AC.48/L,9)

57, Mr. MAKTUS (United States of America) explainad that article 42 A of his
prososal was based on Articls 57 of the Statute of the Inturnational Court of

Justice,

Article 42 A was adopted by 1C votes to 2 with 1 abstention.

Article 42 B (A/AC.48/L.9)

58, Mr, MaKkTGS (United States of America) explained that article 42 B was
based on Article 58 of the Statute cf the Intarnational Cour® cf Justice, Fhe

vord "agents" in the latter havirz been replaced by the word "dafendant',



T T B/aC.BB/SR420
’ page 13

59 hr, LIiNG, Secretary to the Committee,.proposed that in the light of.
the terms of article 42 A Just adopted the first sentence of 42 B should read "The
‘judgment and the opinion shall be signed by the Pr.sident and by the Registrart,

L d

60, Mr, ROLING (Netherlands) questioned the expediency of including the
first sentence, A8 to the addltlon of the words "and the opinion", quoting

from experience at the Tokyc Trial, he submitted that, if consideration were to

be given to the possibility of having the opinions of dissident Judges read in

open court, regard should bs had to the possible length of such opinions., He

hed no ‘experience on the national level in the-matter, since the delivery of
separats opinions was not permitted in the N:stherlands, but he recalled how at
Tokyo counsel for the défence had taken objection to the fact that dissident
opinions had not been read in open court. It had been decided not to do so, bscause

one dissenting opinion alone had run to 1300 pages,

" 61, Mr, COHN (Isrc2l) considered thet the first sentence of article 42 B
could Fasily be deleted, for the court could be left to lay down in its rules

of procedurs, appropriate regulations for the signing of a judgment. He also took
serious objuction to the second sentence, which implied that if a defendant were

" given due notice of the fact that a judgnent would 53 read in open court but failed
to appear when it was read, tha court could pass sentence in his abscnce. He

could not vote for a text whlch made it possmble for sentcnce to be passed on an

accused in his absence.

624 The Ch.IRMW\N stated that it weas the practice in the Uniged States of
smorica for judges of the suprume Court to decide 'whither or not opinions should
be read in open court, and-it frequently heppened that dissenting judgments of
particular interest to the Bar were selucted for such trcatment, He wondered

whether the words "prevailing opinion" would not be more satisfactory,

63. - kr. FINEYRO CHAIN (Uruguay) proposed thet it be stipulatea that the
judgment should be signed by 11 the judges who had taken pa££ in the decision,

and by the Reglistrar, since all the judges, including those who had e&pressed
dissenting opinions, had contributed to the criminal procesdings and their outcoms,
Vhen signing th. decision, any judge who so desired could state that he had

expressu¢d a dissenting opinion,



A/AC .48/SR.20
pags 14

6hoi The texts of the dissenting opinions could be given separately,

65, Mr. RULING (Nethorlands) recalled that at the Tokyo Trial certain judges
had so strongly opposed the majority opinion that they had at first r:fused to
gign the judgment, and had only finally agreed to do so under the formula "as
evidence of the majority opinion', In his view, the court could be left to

decide whether or not dissenting judges should be obliged to sign the judgment,

66. The CHAIRMAN put to the vete the Uruguayan proposal that all Jjudges and
the Registrar should be required to sign the judgment, :

The Uruguayan proposal was rejected by 3 votes to 1 with 8 absten tions,

67. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the Israeli proposal that the articie 42 B
as a whole should not be adopted for insertion in the statute,

The Israeli proposal was lost, 5 votes being cast in favour and 5 against,

and with L abstentions. -

68, The CHAIRRAN put to the vote the first sentence of article 42 B, revised
to read: '“The judgment and the prevailing opinion shall be signed by the
President and by the Registrar®.

Those words wers adopted by 7 votes to 1, with é abstenticns,

69, Mr, PINTO (France) observed thot in French the word "arr8t" included
both a statement of reasons and an operative part. In those circumstances, the
addition proposed would not necessitate any alteration to the French text,

70« He also asked thet a separate vote be teken on the two parts of the second

sentence of article 42 B,

.  The CHaIRMAN put to the vote the first part of the second sentence of
article 42 B, readingt "The judgnent and the prevailing opinion shall be read

in open courtl,



A/4C.48/SR ,20
pagg 15

That rule was adopted by 9 votes to 2 with 3 abstentions.

72, Replying to the CH..IRMAN, Mr. kiKTOS (United otates of hmerica) said
he would withdraw the phrase "due notice having been given to the defendant®
since, as the Israeli representative had pointed >ut, its retention might lead - -
to the undesirable position that é Judgrent could be pronounced in ‘the absence

of the accused.

The meetirng was suspended st 11 a.m. and was resumed at 11,15 am,

arbicle 43 (4/iC.48/1, A/.C.h8/L.9, 4/xC.48/L.20) -

3. Mr, MAKTUS (United States of imerica), introducing his amendments to
article 43 (4/4C.48/L.9), said he felt there was-no incompatibility between his
text and that of the Secreteriat (A/AC;hé/l). His Wording had been taken from
Article 61 of the Stutute of the International Court of Jus%ica. Paragraphs 3, 4
and 5 of that Article had been deleted, becsuse the intarnational court to be

set up was to deal with crimiral, not civil cases. He had also deleted the last
part of paragrazph 1, reading "always provided that such ignorance was not due to
negligence", because he felt that the court, in coming to its final decision,
should not be swayed by any considerations as to negligence, but should be gulded
solely by the guilt or innccence of the accused, as revealed by the new fact which

had been discovered, ‘

74. Similar provisions were to be found in artiele L3 of tue Convention for the
Creation of an International Criminal Court (Geneva, 1937),1/ but he had found
their wording insufficiently precise ..n places since, in his opinion, the ,
criterion of whether a judgment wes to be revised or not should be the discovery
of some new fuct, He considered that, if a man could prove his innocence, he -
should bte allowed to apply to the court even thirty years after a Judgment had

been passed,

5. The ChalIlhuN pointed out that, if the United States proposal was intended
as a substitution for the 3Secretariat's draft, it failed specificélly to rule out
the possibility of appeal,.as did the latter,

1/ A/CN.L/7/Rev.l, pages 88 to 97,



A/AC.L3/SR.20
page 16

’.

76, Mr, MIKTOS (United States of /merica) explained that his proposal implied
Yhat no appeal would be allowed; the court could, how:ver, decide in fuvour of

the revision of any given cass, In the event of an accused believing that the
court had been mistaken in its judgment, he might consider appealing to the court
for a reversal of its decisign. Little purpose would be served, however, since
the-Judges woﬁld presumably have given due consideration to his case and would not
be likely to reverse their findings. If he waited until much later, when the
membership had changed, his appeal would appear extremely suspect, whils if it were
lodged with an entirely different court great difficulties would be involved,

No appeal should consequsntly be allowed to a defendant on the grounds that an
error of law had been committed; it should only be permissible when a new fact

had been discovered,

7. Mr. LIANG, Secretbary to the Committee, agreed with the United States
reprosentative that there was no incompatibility between the two texts., The
Secretariat!s draft did not envisage the revision of ani Judgment, but such
revision was not excluded by its wording.

!

78,  Mr. COHN (Israei) felt there was no substantial difference between the
United States representative's views and his own, He desired, however, to draw
the attention of the Committee to the amendment (4/sC.48/L.10) he had submitted to
articles 43 and 44, In order to facilitate discussion, the Coﬁmittee might be
well advised to examine hie proposal first, befors considering the United States
“text, '

79 - Mr. MAKTOS (United Statea of America) said that he had no objection to
that suggestion, He noted that under the first paragraph of the Israell text
the procurator general was entitled to appeal if a judgment of acquittal were
pronounced, Hgyappreciated that it would be unjusi not to grant the same rights
to both the defendant and the prosecution, but felt that an accused who was
acquitted would already have suffered very greatly, so that if, as thé result
of the human limitations of his Judges, a Judgment of acquittal had been
pronounced, he should not be reguired to stand trial egein, In most American
Smatfs, moreover, the possibility of re-triel was excluded, '



afhC. L8/ NI
page 17

80, ' Mr. COHN (Israel) said that, before commenting on his own proposal, he
wished to offer certain criticisms of the text drafted by the Secretariat, He
noted that erticle 43 read "There shall be no appeal ,..", whereas article 44
stated that: "Exceptionally an appeal may be lodged +..", and.laid down three
sets of circumstances (gub-paragraphs (=), (b) and (c¢)} in which such an appeal
was admissible, Sub-paragraphs (a) and (c) both rested on the .round that ths
court had not besn entitled in law to tuke the decision concerned, and both went
to the very core. of the problem of what the court's Jjurisdiction would be., Sub-
paragraph (b), on ‘the other hand was concerned with irregular procedure, that was,
with cases where the court had not for example respected the basic rights of the
accused, The Secretariat!s text failed, howsver, to clarify one vital issucz,
namely, whether such right of appeal would be enjoyed not only by the accused,
but also by the prosecution; he assumed that both would enjoy it. He felt,
however, that the three special cases mentioned in article 44 could not, and
should not, be retained.

8l, The Secretariat's text also provided for appeals to be lodged with the
International Court of Justics, which meant that the intarnational criminal court
would be subordinéte,té that body, .Such subordination would necsessarily be
detrimental to the dignity and standing of the int:rnational criminsl court,

He felt therefore that both bodies should be placed on an equal footing,

82, Mr., LI:iNG, Sscretary to the Committee, pointed out that the steps
provided for in article 44 of the Secreteriat's draft were most exceptional and,
indeed, not constitutionally possible at the present time; urless the Charter
of the United Nations and the Ststute of the International Court of Justice were
revised, there would be no poussibility of louging such appeals, He was

consequently preparsd to withdraw erticle ki,

83. Mr. COHN (Israel) thanked the Secretary for his gesture, He personally
felt that any criminal Jjurisdiction which conferred extensive powers on the court
to pass sentence on an accused for an offence but under which neither the ‘
prosecution nor the defence were entitled to appeal, was not a proper criminal

jurisdiction in the modern sense of the temrm,



A/4C.48/5R 420
page 18

84. He could envisage the case of a treaty which stipulated that a certain act
wag an offence; an accused would be brought before ths court which, by a small
ma jority aﬁd with serious dissentions, would decide that the offence had been
-committed and that the accused wds guilty, It might be that, had the treaty been
propérly interpreted, the court would not have found that an cffence had bsen
commitéed at all, It was, therefore, essential to unsure that the accused shouid

be entitled to appeal'to a higher and more qualified tribunsl,

85, He did not envisage appeals from the judgment being lcdged with the
International Court of Justice., He preferred the instituticn of a court of
appeal within the international criminal court iself, with ciffcerent judges from
those who had tcksn part in the original trial. Tne Supreme Court of Judicature
in England was composed of trial judges, and those same Jucges also sat on the
Court of Criminal Appeal, where they were called upon to review cases which had
been Jjudged by their colleagues from the sane court, It was fundamental to the
acceptance of his proposal that the trials held by thé internatiovnal criminsl
court should not be held before the court in its entirety, That meant that in
almost svery instance a case would be tried befor. what might be called a chamber,
He argued that the length of the Tokyo Trisls mdght well have been reduced had
less Jjudges been sitting on the Bench, since the smaller the number of judges
trying a case, the less risk there was of protracted hearings and miscarriages

of justice., In every system of law there was a tendency to roduce the number of
Jjudges required to try a case, He pointed to the example cf Jewish courts, where
the number of Judges had bsen progressively reduced from 71 in ancient times %o
seven, snd later to threq during the Middle .ges. In fngland, too, the judicial
authority previously exercised by beth Houses of rarlizm:nt had now devolved on
a emall group of Law Lords,

86, He felt thot the grant of the right of appeal to the prosecution was not
simply a question of ensuring cquality of rights with the de’ence; if a case
whien had alreédy passed through all the varicus preiiminary stages of initiation,
screening and preparation were brought before the invsrnational criminal court,
and the trial court found the accused not guilty ui: & point of law, why, he askad,
ghenl? wot tha nrosaecution, or even the United xuilons, swok to have the case
re-tried? B



n/AC ahS/SR .20.
page 19

1

87, He also drew attention to the fact that his aucnduent allowed for targe
exceptions, namely: that no appsal would be allowed against want of form cof the
indietment, aguinst srronecus admission or weighing of evidence, or against

irregularity of procedure,

88, The CHAIRMAN understood that the represcntative of Israel envisaged

the court as ons intsgral whole, all its activities, including the apﬁeal
procedurs, being confined within its own limlzs, No cuestion would then arise

as to the relative importance of any otheé b.iy. He asked the Israeli
representative to explain his attitude to the contenticn vhat the Committes could
not prevent a country from challenging befcrs the International Court of Justice

an interprstation by the inturnctional crimdnal court of a tréaty or convention,

v.89. Mr, COHN (Israel) explained that the answer to that eontention was
apparent if the problem were considered on the national planc., A similar
question wus involved in the daily conflicts of jurisdiction botwzen criminal
and civil courts, whsre difficulties oft.n arose over claims for damages in
eivil courts resulting from the findings of the criminal courts on charges, for
example, of assault, The problem had as many sclutions as there were judicial
systems. In any event, the parties would be different in cach case, and the
international criminal court could either hold th.t the judgnent of the
International Coust of Justics would nct be nandatory upon it, or that it would
be guided by the decision reached by the latter.

90. kr. PINTG (France) supportud the view of the United States representative,
since it simplificd the problem, It was certainly most desirable that the court's
judgment should wholly satisfy the requirecments of justice., But if the

possibility of a second instance were alleowed, the very authority and prestige

that the Committee was seeking to¢ confer on the international criminal court

would be undermined. It was for the court to give a final decision, Moreover,

the appeals procedure envisaged in the Israeli proposal, which amounted to the
creation of dual jurisdiction within the criminal court itself, would bs too
complicuted,



Af4C .48 /SR, 20
puge 20

91. The Committee would be well advised to retain the concept of a court with
the status of a supreme court, against whose judgments there would be no appeals

92, mr, RCLING (Netherlands) said that he would vote against any right of
appeal being granted. The proceedings of the court could be envisaged in two

ways; a case cculd be tried by iimited number of judges, or by the international
eriminal court as a whole, The matter would be investigated very fully, so that
it was reasonable to assume that a single trial would be sufficient, He )
thercfors felt thet no appeal should be granted, always provided the necessary

gusrantees were secured to the accused,

93, e also indicated his intention of voting against any procedure allowing
.the revision of a judgmént. Most of the cases which would come before the court
would be concerned with political issues and the policies of States, invoelving
aggression or crimes against humanity.- 1f provision were made for the revision
of a Judgment, a triai might be held in 1950 and then, some ten years later,
when the world situation had completely changed; an appsal for revision might be
lodged, To take a specific case, Japan ndght soon be acceptsed by many as a
friencdly State, and the Japanese might well wish to sec the decisions taken by
the Tokyo Military Tribunal changed, If those decisions had been taken by the
international criminsl court, capan might apply for a revision which would, in
the changed circumstances, possibly.be granted, and that would under@ine the
prestige of the first judgment. In nearly all such cases an applicaiion for a
revision might ultimately be successful, It would pruvoke great uncertainty. .
He therefore folt that all pdssibility of such rsvision must be sxcluded; all

that was necessory was to ensure that real justice was done in the first instance,

94, Mr, WANG (China) agreed with the two preceding speakers. He felt, N
moreover, that a clear distinction should be drawn between appeal and revision,
An appeal could be lodged either with an outside body or with some agency within
the internaticnal ceiminal court itsglf. \Assuming the first possibility, }m
argued that the international criminal court was intended to be the equal of any
other in authority, and it would consequently be impossible to allow an appeal to
be lodged with any outside pody. An appeal lodged within the court must likewise



A/AC.LB/SR 20
page 21

be excluded, iny case béfore the court would be tried by judges of the court on
its behalf, and their decision would consequently represent the decision of the
court as a whole, He felt it would be unduly complicated to have two groups of
judges, one concerned with trial, the cther with appeal, The trial judges should
commend sufficient confidence to render a court of appeal superfluous and to enable

thelr decision to bs considered as final,

95. hr, MUNIR (Pakistan) agreed that the decisions of the trial judges
should be final,

9. Mr, MLKTOS (United States of imsrica) drew the atiention of the Committee |
to the United States proposals contained in decument 4/4C.48/L.13. Article 20 A
theroin provided that "The Court may from time to time form one or more chambers ...
for dealing with particular categcries of cascs," Paragraphs 1 and 2 of Article

20 B read: "A judgment and sentence éiven by any of the chambers ,,... shall be
considered as delivered and pronourced by the Court ¢see¢s o« The full Court may,
upon application to it by any party, review on quastions of law the final judgment

: of'a chawber.” The Committee might decide in favour of such chambers, in which
case the question of appeal against them would still remain unsolved, On the

other hand, it might decide against the idea of having chambsrs and for all trials
being éonducted by the court, He therefore suggested that, by first taking a
decision whether the court shculd be empowered to forn chambers; the Committee
might easily settle the whole issue, Should the idea of chambers be accepted,

the questiovn of appeal.against their judgnent might be.taken up.

97. Anotﬁer problem was that raised by Jurisdiction., If a State felt thet the
court had no genuine Jjurisdiction, it would not wish to hand over any of ite
nativnals for trial by it. In the event of & United States citizen being accused
of the crime of genocide by another State, the United States Governiusnt éould, if
it felt the court had no Jurisdiction to interpret the Convention on Genocjde,
rofer its application to the International Court of Justics, on the groﬁnds that
the State was wrong in its interpretation, )



AJ:8 48/SR .20
page 22

98, - Mr. TARAZI (Syria) sald that the point at issue was whether the court's
Judgment would or would not be subject to appeal, Should ths establishment of

a court with one or -more chambers be contemplated, it would seem difficult to
accept vhe principle of ths pussibility of an appeal to the full court against a

Judgment given by a cha@bar of that court, which in actual fact would be simply
an internal subsidiary organ of the court,

99, If the Committes imtended to give the intermational criminal court the status

of a supreus court, it should not‘admit-tha possibility of appeals being lodged
against its decisione. , .

100, On the other hand, the possibility of a revision of thé court's decisions
should be retained, The United States proposal provided that a reoquest for such
revision might be made cnly on the ground of phe discovery of a new fact. Perhaps
it would be wsll to add the grounds enumeratzd in article 44 of‘the Secretariat'sa
praliminary draft, which would, exceptionally, justify an appeél being lodged
against the decisions of ths court,

101, Mr;‘RﬁLING (Netherlands) considered that the first problsem to be solved
was that cf whether chambers might be established., A decision on that point

would mean that a large number of oth=r questiohs would solve themselves,

102, He was opposed to the idea of chambers, whenever the international criminal
court should be representative of the entire world, Its judges would therefore
represent the various legal systems, If the court were to divide into chambers,
the question would at once arise of how, and by whom, such chambers were to be
constituted, A further problem raised would be that of distribution, since ths
principle of representation of the various legal systems would have to be

observed in the case of each particular chamber,

103, Mr. CUHN (Israel) supported the suggestion made in article 20 A of the
United Statcs proposal (4/nCe48/L.13), which he had not read before making his
last statement, He had no objection to the full court sitting to try certain
particularly sericus cases if it so decided; he assumed there would then be no

appeal, -since all the judges would have taken part in the decision, He submitted,



A/AC.48/SR.20
page 23

howevel , that the quastion of whether a case sh.uld be heard before all the
menbers of the courv was a matter to be l=ft te the discretion of the court
itself.

104. The CHAIRAN interpreted the Israeli representative's comments as
implying that there should be no express stipulation that cases should be tried
by less than the full conrt, but that if cases were in fact tried by chambers,
then neither party would be bouﬁd by the decision of the chamber, but would be
free to appeal from it to tue full court, -

105. Mr. PINLYRO CHAIN (Uruguay) said that the Committee w;s confronted with
two totally different problemss revision and appeal, Revision of a judgment

could only be requested after the decision had become fipal., On the other hand,

an appeal was a petition lodged before the judgment had become final, So far as
revision was concerned, the problem was relatively simple. Obviously the discovery
of a new fact, of sdch a nature s to be a decisive element in the ruling of the

court, would justify revision of the judgment pronounced by the court,

106. The probleun was more intricate in the case of appsal. He felt thet, if
the decision had been pronocunced by the full court, it ghould not be subject to
appeal, whereas if it had been pronounced by a chamber of the court, the accused
must be given the opportunity of appealing against it. At all events, it was
obvious thet,acceptance of the actual principle of appeal would-detract from the

court!s authority.

1u7. He agreed in principle wifh the Israeli represe:atative's proposal to the
effect that the accused might only lodge an appeal from the judgment on points of
law, but thought that such appeal should be allowcd only from judgments
pronounced by a chamber of the court, and not from decisions of the full court,

108, The CHAlkmAN felt that the Committee should vote on whether a praovision
was required allowing the contending partics to seek the ruling of the full court

on a point of law,



A/AC.48/SR,.20
page 2,

109, Ik answer to a guestion by hr. RULING (Netherlands) he explained that such
a vote would not prejudge the attitude of the Committee to the guestion of
chambers, ‘

110, Mr. AMADU (Brazil) felt that the main question was still whether the
deciaions of the court should or should not be subject to appeal, The solution
of various other problems confronting the Committee depended on how that question
was solved, and the Committée should thercfore vote on it first, He personally
thought that the decisioms of the court should not be subject to appeal, If

the Committee held the contrary, it would seriously impair the authority and
prestige of the international criminal court, The publicity given 4o the court's
proceedings would certainly be considerable, and the general public would have
difficulty in understanding why declsions of such a high legal authority should
be only of a transitory nature. .

1, Mr, SOR:NoZN (Denmark) suggested that a vote should be taken as
suggested by the representative of Brazil, with the reservation that the decision
reached might be reconsidered if the Committee subsequently decided to adopt

the system of chambers.

112. Mr, COHN (Israel) pointed out that there was now no proposal before
the Committee that appeal should be allowed from a decision of the full court,
The Secretariat*s draft had originally provided for appeal to the International
Court »f Justice, but the Secretary had already withdrawn that provieion.l)

113, Mr, AMADO (Brazil) thought tnat the representative of Israel had
misunderstood the problem, The Committee had not in fact woted on article 43
of the Secretariat's draft. Articls 44 of tnat draft did not refer to appeal as
éuch, but to appeal in exceptional circumstances against decisions of the court,
The question of the creation of chambers of the court had, wrongly, been linked
with that of appeel, Those questions were not neceegsarily bound together, and

1) See paragraph 82 above,



A/AC ,48/5R.20
page 25

-~

the principle of constituting one or more chambers within the.court could be
accepted without thereby accepting the’principle of eppeal, The Committee should
therefore decide on those two questions separately. As he had already stated, he
himself was opposed to the principle of appeal, but he ressrved his position on

the gquestion of revision of ths court's judgments,

114. The CHAIR#AN consideresd that the Committee was generally agreed that

no appeal could be lodged outside the Ecurt, but the point at issue-wes whe€her

the contending partiss which were heard before any body less than the full court
" could lodge with the full court an appeal frem the judgement of the former,

115. MOSTAFA Bey (igypt) thought that the question had been badly framed,
and that there was some confusion between the. preblems, The Committee had not
yet come to the question of .the organization of the court. It had first to
decide whether appeal should be allowed, It could examine later how such an
appeal was to be made when it considered the organization of the ocourt,

116, Nr. PINTO (France) considered that the division within the Committee
was mainly due to the manncr in which the problem had been presented, The
Brazilian representative wanted the Committee to vote first on article 43 of
the Secretarlat's draft, which provided that there should be no appeal from the
decisions of the court, There seamed to be no objection to votigg on that
question immediately, for the adoption of article 43 would in no way prejudice
the questions which were causing the present controversy, '

117. Mv, ANADG (Brazil) pointed out that both he and the Netherlands
representative had opposed the principle of any right to appeal being granted,
It should be clearly understood that therse was not nscesscrily any link betwsen
the right to appeal and the idea of instituting chambers. The purpose of such
ckambars would be to deal with particular categories of cases,

~

118, The CHAIRMAN called for a vote on the principle of the admissibility
of an appeal from a lower to a higher-division of the court. i



4/3C J48/5R +20
page 26

The principle was rejected by 11 votes to 3 with 1 abstention,

119, © kr, PINAYRO CHAIN (Uruguay) accepted the principle of r:vision of a
Jjudgment, based on ths discuvery of some fact of such a nature as to be a
decisive fzctor., He would thercfore vote for the text of article 43 as contained
in the Urited States proposal (4/iC.48/L.9), provided that the words "and also

to the party claiming revision® were deleted from paragraph 1. Those words were
really sup:rfiuous, since the discover& of a new fact, must, by definition, be

unknown %o the paffy claiming revision.

120. hr. nUNIR (Pakistan) suggested that the idea contained in article 43
of the United States proposal might be better dealt with under article 45 A of
the same proposal., The cases it c¢cnvisaged were admittedly rare, but if the
General Assembly had powers of clemency, it evuld also deal with cases of thet
kind. He thcrefore suggested that article 43 be deleted, and its substance
incorporated in article 45 A. _ .

121,  The CHALRNAN called for a vote on the Uruguayan proposal that the words
"and also to the party claiming revision! be deleted from paragraph 1 of article

43.

The Uruguayan proposal was rcjected by b votes tc 1 with 7 abstentions,

Paragraph 1 of article 43 in the U-ited Ststus nroposal (4/iC.43/L.9) was
adopted by 9 votes to 3 with 3 abstentions,

122, ' The CHAIRMAN considered thﬁt, though the vote had not included the text
of paragraph 2, no separate vote was necessary since the adoption of the ideas
in paragraph 2 followed automatically from the adoption of those in paragraph 1,

It was so agreed.,

The meeting rose at 1 p.m,





